
27 March 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

CABINET
will meet on

Thursday, 4 April 2019
beginning at

6:30 pm
in

Rooms 16/17, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Keith House (Chair), Councillor Paul Bicknell (Vice-Chair)
Councillor David Airey Councillor Tina Campbell
Councillor Ian Corben Councillor Tonia Craig
Councillor Rupert Kyrle Councillor Derek Pretty

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Performance and Governance Lead Specialist 
(Democratic Services) Tel: 023 8068 8041; Email: 
laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

_____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website -
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk.

as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the 
meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To 

register please contact the Democratic Services Officer above
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording 

and photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using 
tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/
https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2019. 

2. Apologies    

3. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

4. Waste Policy    (Pages 7 - 22)

5. Emerging Winchester Local Plan    (Pages 23 - 26)

6. Corporate Action Plan    (Pages 27 - 54)

7. Exempt Business     

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 in respect of the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it 
is/they are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the 
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  This 
came into effect on 1 March 2006.
 
It is considered that the following items are exempt from disclosure and that the 
public interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

8. Property Transaction    (Pages 55 - 64)

(a) Property Transaction   (Pages 65 - 70)



DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 16 May 2019 at 6:30 pm

in the Rooms 16/17, Eastleigh House, Upper 
Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET

Thursday, 31 January 2019  (6:30 pm – 6:44 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor House (Chair); Councillors Campbell, Corben, Craig, Kyrle and 
Pretty

Also in attendance: Councillor Broadhurst, Groves, Tidridge and Garton

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bicknell and Airey

________________________________________

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Councillor Gin Tidridge enquired if the Council would be contacting the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance Association (CIPFA) in respect of the 
prudential code. The Chair replied that it would not be.

RECOMMENDED ITEMS (REQUIRING A DECISION)

2. GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 AND FINANCIAL 
MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2018

Issue

The report sets out the Council’s proposed budget for 2019/20 and 
financial monitoring to 31 December 2018 (paper 4).

Considerations

The budget underpins the delivery of the Council’s Strategic Priorities.  
The budget aligns the appropriate level of resource that enables services 
and projects to be delivered so that there is a direct impact in residents.  
The Budget also is a vital management mechanism to ensure financial 
sustainability of the Council, fulfilment of statutory obligations, financial 
prudence and compliance.  The draft Budget presented is a balanced 
budget.

RESOLVED – 

That Cabinet recommends Council:

(1) Approves the revised Budget for 2018/19 (para 10) which 
incorporates pressures and efficiencies identified as part of the 
financial monitoring to 31 December 2018;

(2) Sets the net revenue Budget requirement for 2019/20 at 

1

Agenda Item 1



2

£10,045,000 and note the impact on the Council’s General Fund 
Balance (para 10);

(3) Notes the Local Government Finance settlement for 2019/20 
(paras 13-16);

(4) Approves budget growth of £468,000 in 2018/19 and £338,000 in 
2019/20 (paras 25-30);

(5) Increases the Council Tax for Eastleigh Borough Council by 
1.1% (1% below CPI) for 2019/20 (para 18); and

(6) Approves the Special Expenses for Parished and Non-Parished 
areas (paras 23-24).

That Cabinet approved:

(1) Expenditure of £479,800 for the Point Capital Development 
Scheme, to be funded from external grant income received 
from Arts Council England (£367,800), Repairs and Renewals 
Reserve (£101,000) and fundraising by The Point (£11,000) 
(para 38-39);

(2) Expenditure of £131,500 in 2018/19 for the Disabled Facilities 
Grant Programme to be funded from Government Grant (para 
40);

(3) Fees and Charges for skin piercing registration fees detailed in 
para 41; and

(4) That Cabinet noted the positive impact of the Council’s 
successful property investment decisions which are budgeted 
to generate a net surplus for the Council of £9M in 2019/20 
(para 6).

3. CAPITAL STRATEGY

Issue

The Capital Strategy sets out the long term context in which capital 
expenditure decisions are made and gives due consideration to both the 
risk and reward of these decisions and the impact on the achievement of 
priority objectives (paper 5).

Considerations

This Strategy is a new report for 2019/20, giving a high level overview of 
how capital expenditure, financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of local services along with an overview of how 
associated risk is managed and the implications for future sustainability.

2



3

RESOLVED – 

That Cabinet recommends Council:

(1) Approves the capital strategy;

(2) Approves the Treasury Management Strategy in Appendix B; 

(3) Approves the Investment Strategy in Appendix C;

(4) Approves the changes to the Prudential Indicators in Appendix 
B1/B2; and

(5) Approves the changes to the MRP Statement in Appendix B3.

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

4. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 be agreed 
as a correct record.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

6. HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE

Issue

This report provides an update on Eastleigh Borough Council’s Housing 
Programme activity and seeks approval for a policy direction as part of two 
new initiatives (paper 6).

Considerations

The reports sets out how the Council will take forward its Housing 
Programme in 2019 and beyond, by implementing its spending 
commitments; strengthening its partnership working with developers and 
Registered Providers; and maximising use of the housing delivery vehicle 
Aspect Building Communities Ltd.

RESOLVED – 

That Cabinet:

3



4

(1) Approved the allocation of £7.9m (inclusive of the estimated 
additional £0.4m 2019/20 allocation) of the New Homes Bonus 
in accordance with the strategic approach set out in this report, 
to be committed to affordable housing schemes in the Borough 
by 2022.  Detailed approval from Cabinet will subsequently be 
sought for each specific funding allocation; and

(2) Endorsed the details of a ‘route to home ownership’ product to 
be offered by Aspect Building Communities Ltd. in 2019.

7. GRANTS TO SPONSORED BODIES

Issues

The report concerns the funding for sponsored organisations, Eastleigh 
CitA and One Community (supplementary report Paper 10). This item was 
taken in public as it was marked as exempt in error.

Considerations

The Council supports both Eastleigh CitA and One Community as key 
voluntary sector partners.  Both organisations rely on Council funding to 
provide services to sectors of the community most in need.  The grants are 
reviewed and awarded on an annual basis.  A Service Level Agreement 
for each organisation, along with a full report will be presented to Cabinet 
in April 2019.  Cabinet approval is sought for the grant determination as 
set out in the report.

RESOLVED – 

That the allocation of the annual grant payments to Eastleigh 
Citizens Advice (CitA) and One Community for 2019/20 be approved.

8. EXEMPT BUSINESS

RESOLVED -

(1) That, in pursuance of Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following items of business on the grounds that they 
are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; 
and

(2) That, in pursuance of the public interest test, the public 
interest in disclosing the information contained in the following 
item of business was outweighed by the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption.

4



5

9. PAY AND REWARD

Issue

To consider the Council’s Pay and Reward Proposal (paper 7).

Considerations

The report sets out a number of issues relating to the Pay and Reward 
proposal.

RESOLVED – 

That the recommendations set out in the report be approved.

10. PROPERTY TRANSACTION

Issue

To consider a property transaction (paper 8).

Considerations

The report sets out a number of matters relating to a property transaction.

RESOLVED – 

That the recommendation set out in the report be approved.

5



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 

4 April 2019

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY

14 March 2019

WASTE POLICY UPDATE

Report of the Strategy Lead for Environment

Recommendations

It is recommended that  Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel:

(1) Comments on the proposed revisions to the Waste Policy

It is recommended that Cabinet:

(2) Agrees that the proposed revisions to the Waste Policy be adopted.

Summary

In May 2011 Cabinet approved a new single policy for the waste and recycling service to 
bring together the results of the review, incorporate current policy, custom and practice, 
and place all existing policies into one consolidated policy. 

National policy changes, expansion of food and garden waste, growth in population, waste 
composition changes and improvements to technology mean that the Council now needs 
to consider adjusting this policy to ensure that the Council can meet its waste obligations 
and objectives.

Statutory Powers

The Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2010, as amended

The Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011

1. Strategic Implications 

1.1 The changes proposed will ensure that the Council is able to continue to meet its 
Minimising Waste and Maximising Resources objective in the Corporate Plan 
2015-2025, and that the service is delivered in a way that helps to Tackle 
Congestion. 

7

Agenda Item 4



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

1.2 The waste and recycling service is a significant part of the Council’s operations 
and expenditure, delivering key statutory as well as discretionary services and 
playing a significant role in the reputation and community leadership role of the 
Council with residents and other stakeholders.

2. Introduction 

2.1 The last revision to the Councils waste policy was in May 2011 when Cabinet 
approved a new single policy for the waste and recycling service.

2.2 National policy changes, growth in population, waste composition changes and 
improvements to technology mean that the Council now needs to consider 
adjusting this policy to ensure that the Council can meet its waste obligations.

2.3 The revisions to Policy proposed in this document are specifically designed to 
respond to changes over the last 8 years.

3. Improvements to the policy

2.1 The following amendments are proposed to the Waste Policy from the previous 
iteration:

 The Council has a role in inspecting Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs); an 
additional category setting out the number of bins provided to multi-occupancy 
households has been added. 

 Collection times are planned to avoid causing congestion issues, with main 
roads targeted before rush hour. Every effort is made to minimise the impact of 
noise on residents, including ensuring that all new vehicles have electric bin lifts. 

 The policy includes clarification of guidance for residents who wish to present 
further recyclable material should they have insufficient capacity in bins 

 Clarification as to where and when residents should present their bins
 Clarification regarding the assisted collection service 
 The policy has also been amended to provide a more realistic timescale for the 

service recovery due to severe weather or unforeseen incidents.

4. Financial Implications

4.1 There are no significant financial implications related to the proposals as set out 
in the new policy.

5. Risk Assessments

5.1 Changes within the policy are designed to minimise risks associated to delivering 
the waste service. There are no identified risks due to the proposals within this 
document. 

6. Equality and Diversity Implications

6.1 Consideration has been given for the protected characteristic groups

8



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

6.2 The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision relates 
to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or fostering good 
relations between different people in the following ways:  The decision/change of 
service will result in an improvement for people with mobility problems. A full 
Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because while there 
are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

7. Conclusion

7.1 The changes proposed to the waste policy will lead to significant improvements 
to the waste service and improve clarity regarding how the service is operated. 

7.2 It is recommended that Cabinet agrees to adopt the revised policy.

JASON LIGHT
STRATEGY LEAD FOR ENVIRONMENT

Date: 25 January 2019
Contact Officer: Jason Light
Tel No: 023 80688077
e-mail: jason.light@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

* List Background Papers or state None.

9



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

Appendix 1 – Proposed Waste Policy

Eastleigh Borough Council

Domestic Waste and 
Recycling Policy February 

2019

Background

Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) is committed to minimise waste 
in the borough, tackle climate change and create an excellent 
environment for all.

In May 2011 Cabinet approved a new single policy for the waste and 
recycling service to bring together the results of the review, incorporate 
current policy and custom and practice, and place all of the existing 
policies into one consolidated policy document. This policy 

The policy is written in accordance with The Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2010 as amended, The Waste Regulations (England and Wales) 
2011, Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the Highways Act 1980.

The Service

The Council operates an alternate weekly collection service for household 
residual waste and Dry Mixed Recycling, alongside weekly food waste and 
monthly glass/battery collection services. In addition a chargeable garden 
and bulky waste collection services are available. Healthcare waste is also 
collected from residents upon arrangement with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 

Bin type/colour

The standard general (residual) waste container offered will be a 180 litre 
wheeled bin and will be coloured black. Flatted developments will have 
1100 litre wheeled bin with a black lid for shared usage.

Recycling bins will be 240 litre wheeled bins and coloured green; bins at 
flatted developments 1100 litre and will have a green lid.

A 7 litre brown internal food waste bin (caddy) and a 23 litre brown external 
food waste bin is provided. (Please note that the food waste collection service is not 
currently available at flatted developments)

A 38 litre glass box is provided. A 240 litre wheeled bin is available on 
request for properties that have large quantities of glass each month (in 
excess of three glass boxes).

10



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

Residents that subscribe to the garden waste service will 
received a 240 litre wheeled bin coloured green with a brown lid. 

Waste Capacity

Bin capacity is allocated on the number of occupants.

All waste bins must be identified with the property number to ensure only 
authorised bins are collected. Unauthorised bins or properties with 
excessive numbers of bins will be recorded by the waste collection crews 
and reported to the Direct Services Unit. Residents will be contacted and 
advised of council policy, provided with advice on how to minimise waste 
and maximise recycling. In cases of excessive capacity, bins will be not be 
emptied and may be removed.

Number of Occupants within a domestic 
premise (including houses of multiple 
occupation).

Waste Container provision

1 or 2  1 x 140 litre black wheeled bin 
(residual waste)

 1 x 140 litre green wheeled bin 
(recyclable waste)

 1 x 7 litre indoor kitchen caddy

 1 x 23 litre external kitchen bin

 1x 38 litre glass box
3 - 5  1 x 180 litre black wheeled bin 

(residual waste)

 1 x 240 litre green wheeled bin 
(recyclable waste)

 1 x 7 litre indoor kitchen caddy

 1 x 23 litre external kitchen bin

 1 x 38 litre glass box

6 - 9
 2 x 180 litre black wheeled bin 

(residual waste)

 2 x 240 litre green wheeled bin 
(recyclable waste)

 1 x 7 litre indoor kitchen caddy

 1 x 23 litre external kitchen bin

11



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

 1 x 38 litre glass box

10+ Where a household with 10 or more 
occupants or with more than one child in 
nappies or for any other acceptable reason 
can demonstrate that they have insufficient 
capacity then they will be allocated  additional 
capacity. This assessment will be made by a 
Waste Management Officer.

Flats (per six units):  1100  litre black wheeled bin 
(residual waste)

 1100  litre green wheeled bin 
(recyclable waste)

Mini glass recycling facility (subject to site 
assessment)

Kitchen waste container available on request

Additional Recycling
Recycling capacity is not restricted, additional recycling containers are 
available on request.

Recycling – Free clear bags will be provided on request to residents to 
allow them to present additional recycling which must be filled in 
accordance with the policy.

Glass - Additional Glass bottles/jars can be placed in an additional 
container to the one provided by the Council and must be filled in 
accordance to the policy. Should a household frequency require additional 
glass collections they will be provided additional containers. 

Card – Additional Card will be collected as side waste as long as it is 
provided in accordance to the policy (it must be dry and safely stored not 
obstructing the highway).

Collection Times

Wheeled bins for refuse and recycling will be collected on alternate 
weeks. 

 Food waste bins will be collected weekly.

12



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

 Glass recycling boxes and batteries will be collected monthly.

 Garden waste will be collected fortnightly from subscribing households.

 Detailed collection frequencies are also available on 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk ‘What’s at my property’.

All bins, boxes and bags must be put out for collection before 6.30am the 
specified collection day.

 Wheeled bins must be presented with the lid closed.
 Glass boxes must not be overfilled (glass must be level with the 

rim of the box). Batteries must be contained within a clear plastic 
bag and placed on top of the glass within the box.

 Food waste bins must be presented with the lid closed and all 
waste must be wrapped in either newspaper or biodegradable 
bags

 Wheeled bins including the garden waste bins must not be 
overflowing or too heavy for the collection crew to handle. 
Overflowing or over heavy bins will not be collected. Collection 
crews must be able to manoeuvre bins safely. All wheeled bins 
must be closed for health and safety and spillage reasons.

Additional Household Waste (not contained within the 
bins)

Collection crews are instructed not to collect additional household waste 
from alongside or on top of the wheeled bins.

Any additional household waste left by the collection crew is the 
responsibility of the householder who may:

 Place the waste in their wheeled bin awaiting the next collection

 Dispose of the waste are their local Household Waste recycling 
Centre (HWRC)

 Arrange for a bulky household waste collection from the council 
(specified items only) please note that this is chargeable service.

 Arrange for another licensed waste carriers to collect and 
dispose of the waste having mind to their Duty of Care.

No additional household waste will be collected other than for one 
household waste bin (black bin) collection following the December bank 
holiday; provided the waste is properly contained in refuse sacks/suitable 
container (not exceeding 70cm square) when a maximum of one additional 
waste sack/container will be taken.

13

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/


j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

Refuse sacks are not provided by the council.

Additional Recycling Material

Additional recycling material will be collected provided it is properly 
contained in clear plastic bags or loose in a cardboard box (not exceeding 
70cm square). Additional bags/cardboard boxes must be placed adjacent 
to the wheeled bin on the specified collection day.

Clear plastic bags are available free of charge from the council for this 
purpose.

Collection Points
Unless otherwise agreed with the Council, householders are asked to place 
their bins/boxes/bags at the curtilage at the front of their property.

Collection arrangements for properties with private lanes/roads will be 
identified. Wherever possible, the point of collection will be where the 
private lane meets the public highway.

Householders are required to return their bins to their property within 24 
hours of collection to ensure the highway is not obstructed

Assisted Collections

Householders with impairments who require assistance to get their 
wheeled bins, food waste bins, glass box or garden waste bag from their 
normal point of storage to the point of collection may be eligible for an 
assisted collection.

 Eligibility is based on genuine need and subject to there being 
no other person at the property who is able to present the bins.

 The person making the request will be required to complete an  
assisted collection form. This request will be logged on a 
confidential database, which will be provided to the crew only.

 All requests will be agreed by a waste management officer and 
will be reviewed annually.

 A sticker will be placed on the bins to ensure that Crews are 
aware that assistance will be provided.

 Households are responsible for alerting the Council should 
circumstances change or there is a change in occupant and the 
service is no longer required. 

14



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

Non Collected Bins

If bins are not collected as a result of the crews’ inattention, the highway is 
temporarily blocked or for any exceptional circumstance then a return trip 
to empty the bin will be made aim for this to be within 72 hours of the issue 
being raised.

Bins not collected due to the resident not making them available at the 
specified collection time and day, or they contain incorrect items will have 
to wait until the next scheduled collection. 

Residents may choose to dispose of their waste at the Household Waste 
Recycling Centres or alternatively the Council can return to empty the bin, 
however a contribution towards the cost of doing so will be applied. 

Payment for bin emptying will be payment in advance.

Non- collected bins from communal bin stores - where possible the 
Managing Agent will be contacted to be advised of the support and options 
available.

Contamination (incorrect materials with in the recycling 
bins)

Information on how to use the recycling bins is provided on the Council 
website, by the Recycling & Development team. Residents who regularly 
put recycling in the residual bin could face a fixed penalty notice under 
Section 46. 

Recycling bins containing non-recyclable items or bins that are 
contaminated with other items such as food waste/nappies will not be 
emptied.

A notice will be left on the bin stating why the bin has not been emptied. 
(This applies to individual household waste bins only. The council will 
(where possible) contact the managing agent directly for properties with 
communal bin stores.

Residents will be required to remove the incorrect material and then wait 
for the next scheduled collection.

Continual contamination of the recycling bins may result in enforcement 
action being taken.

Alternatively the Council can return to empty the bin, however a 
contribution towards the cost of doing so will be applied. Payment for bin 
emptying will be payment in advance.

15



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

Replacement Bins

The householder is responsible for purchasing replacement household 
(black) wheeled bins should the bin go missing or be damaged. However 
should any bin be damaged or lost due to crew error, the Council will 
replace it at no charge to the resident.

Bins are available from the Council or residents can purchase bins from 
other suppliers as long as they meet specified standards. The standards 
are available on request. This is in accordance with section 46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Recycling bins will be replaced free of charge.

All waste containers (including garden waste bins) remain the property of 
Eastleigh Borough Council and must be left for the use of the new occupier 
when moving house. Garden waste bins remain the property of the Council 
and will be collected when a resident no longer subscribes to the service.

Container charges will be reviewed annually in the Fees and Charges report.

Residential Homes/Schools

Where requested to collect waste from residential homes/hostels or 
schools a charge will be made.

Charity shops

 Waste from charity shops is not permitted in the domestic waste 
stream and will not be collected;

 A separate, chargeable service for charity shop waste is offered 
through the Business Waste Collection Service. Details are 
available at www.eastleigh.gov.uk

Businesses Working From Home

 Waste from businesses working from home (including childminders) 
will be subject to a charge;

 No additional capacity will be provided for waste from businesses 
working from home;

In the event that householders do not comply with the policies of waste 
from businesses working from home (including childminders), the 
following process will apply:

 The bin will not be emptied; an advice note will be left by the 

16

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/


j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

collection crew giving the reason;

 Advice will be given to the householder on their responsibilities 
under the Duty of Care; the bin can be emptied by the Council for an 
appropriate charge.

Animal Waste in Domestic Bin
 Waste from domestic pets is collected as part of residual (black bin)     

waste collections only;
 The waste must be wrapped;
 No additional capacity will be provided for waste from domestic pets;
 The quantity of waste will be limited by the weight of the bin, i.e. if it s 

overfilled with heavy waste (cat litter especially), then no collection 
will be made.

 Waste from businesses e.g. catteries & kennels is defined as 
industrial waste under the Controlled Waste Regulations (Schedule 
3); as such, the Council has no duty to collect it. Paid collections 
can be made through the Business Waste Collection Service on 
request.

In the event that householders do not comply with the policies on animal 
waste in the domestic wheeled bins the following process will apply:

 The bin will not be emptied; an advice note will be left by the 
collection crew giving the reason;

 Residents will be required to remove the offending material then 
either wait for the next scheduled collection. Residents may choose 
to dispose of their waste at the Household Waste Recycling Centres 
or alternatively the Council can return to empty the bin however a 
contribution towards the cost of doing so will be applied. Payment 
for bin emptying will be payment in advance.

Garden Waste in Domestic Bins

 Garden waste is not permitted in the residual waste or recycling 
waste containers and will not be collected;

 A separate, chargeable service for green garden waste is available 
to householders. Information on how to subscribe is available on 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk

In the event that householders do not comply with the policies of waste 
from garden waste the following process will apply:

 The bin will not be emptied; an advice note will be left by the 
collection crew giving the reason;

17

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/


j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

 Residents will be required to remove the offending material then 
either wait for the next scheduled collection. Residents may choose 
to dispose of their waste at the Household Waste Recycling Centres 
or alternatively the council can return to empty the bin however a 
contribution towards the cost of doing so will be applied. Payment 
for bin emptying will be payment in advance.

DIY Waste in Domestic Bins

The council recognises that on occasion that small amounts of DIY waste 
will be placed in the black wheeled bin for collection.

 The quantity of waste will be limited by the weight of the bin, i.e. if it s 
overfilled with heavy waste, then no collection will be made.

 No additional capacity will be provided for DIY waste;

 Paint tins are not accepted for collection through the black wheeled 
bin as they get compressed during the collection process causing 
paint residue to leak onto the road surface.

 Brick rubble is not accepted for collection through the  black wheeled 
bin as the weights involved contravene Health & Safety Guidelines

 Hazardous material such as Plasterboard will not be accepted and 
should be disposed of appropriately.

Healthcare Waste

The council provides a non chargeable separate collection for infectious 
waste and discarded sharps from domestic properties.

 The person making the request will be required to complete a 
Healthcare Waste Collection request which must be signed by 
their GP. This request will be logged on a confidential database, 
which will be provided to the crew only.

 All requests will be agreed by a waste management officer and 
will be reviewed annually.

Bulky Household Waste Collections

 Eastleigh Borough Council provides a separate chargeable 
collection of bulky household wastes; a list of items suitable for 
collection is listed at appendix 1.

 Collections are made on a specified day, only those items listed at 
time    of request will be collected.

18



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

 Payment of the relevant charge must be paid prior to the collection

 Residents are required to present their items no earlier than 24 
hours before collection.

 Where practicable, items to be collected must be presented for 
collection at the front of the householder’s property or at the point 
where the refuse is collected from on their collection day. If the 
householder has an impairment and is unable or there is no one 
else available to carry the items to be collected to the collection 
point an assisted collection may be provided.

 No collections will take place from inside the householder’s home.

 If a collection is not made on the day specified due to unforeseen 
circumstances, a member of the Support Services team will contact 
the resident to rearrange the collection at a convenient collection 
time.

 Cancellation of a bulky household waste collection must be made 
no later than 2 working days prior to the agreed collection date.

 Where a cancellation is made within 2 working days of the agreed 
collection date a full refund will be made.

 In the event that a bulky waste item(s) is/are not presented for 
collection on the agreed collection date a refund will not be made 
unless cancellation or amendment was made 2 working days prior 
to the agreed collection date.

Concessions for residents in receipt of benefits

 Concessions will be available for residents in receipt of a means 
tested benefit for bulky waste and garden waste collection.

 These concessions will be reviewed annually under the Fees and 
Charges report.

Arrangements during Bank holidays or weather incidents

 All households will receive a collection of waste (residual or 
domestic) equivalent to one per week i.e. (usually) 52 collections 
per year; please note special arrangements will be employed during 
periods of inclement weather or Bank Holidays. Information on these 
changes will be advertised on our website and through our E News 
service.

 Collections should be no more than 72 hours late and ordinarily 

19



j$dhnxxnm4.docx by alisonwrja

collections will not be brought forward although from time to time, 
depending on which days the public holidays fall, this will be 
unavoidable. This will be with the agreement of the Portfolio lead

20



21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CABINET

4 April 2019

RESPONSE TO EMERGING WINCHESTER LOCAL PLAN (2036)

Report of the Planning Policy Senior Specialist

Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet:

(1) Approves the response to Winchester City Council’s Local Plan ‘call for 
sites’, as set out in this Cabinet report; and

(2) Gives delegated authority to the Planning Policy Senior Specialist in 
consultation with the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council to 
make further comments on any subsequent Winchester Local Plan 
‘Issues and Options’ paper as required.

Summary

Winchester City Council has commenced a review of their Local Plan.  They are 
undertaking a ‘call for sites’ and they will continue to discuss ‘issues and options’ with 
interested parties through 2019.  It is recommended that Eastleigh Borough Council 
makes the following key strategic comments on the emerging Winchester Local Plan at 
this stage:

1.  To welcome the commencement of the Winchester Local Plan review to 2036.
2. To request that the emerging Winchester Local Plan: 

a) Plans positively for housing needs, taking account of unmet needs in the wider 
area, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF);

b) Notes that the submission Eastleigh Local Plan (2016 – 2036) makes a significant 
contribution to meeting housing needs, and requests that the emerging 
Winchester Local Plan also seeks positively to help to meet unmet needs in the 
wider area;

c) Includes a policy to safeguard the route and identify the requirements for the north 
of Bishopstoke link road as it passes through Winchester’s district, to facilitate 
major housing and employment growth in Eastleigh’s ‘Strategic Growth Option’ 
which will reduce pressure for development elsewhere, and minimise additional 
traffic congestion for communities in Eastleigh and Winchester; and

23

Agenda Item 5



d) Continues to safeguard, and to actively support the delivery of the Botley by-pass

Statutory Powers

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Localism Act 2011

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012

Background 

Strategic Implications

1. This report relates particularly to the following objectives in Eastleigh Borough 
Council’s Corporate Plan 2015 – 2025:  Tacking Congestion;  Increased 
Provision and More Diverse Mix of Housing;  and Ensuring Appropriate 
Infrastructure.

Introduction

2. Winchester City Council (WCC) has commenced a review of their Local Plan 
to 2036.  The Local Development Scheme sets out the following stages for 
preparing the plan.  At present WCC has issued a ‘call for sites’.  It is 
anticipated that WCC will continue to discuss issues and options through the 
year and produce a draft plan at the end of 2019.  This will lead through to the 
more formal stages of plan consultation and examination, with an anticipated 
adoption date of December 2021.

3. Eastleigh Borough Council and Winchester City Council have a statutory ‘duty 
to co-operate’ with each other on strategic cross boundary issues in the 
preparation of their Local Plans.  This is partially achieved through the 
Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH), and partially through ‘one to 
one’ dialogue between the two Councils.

4. At this early stage it is recommended that Eastleigh Borough Council respond 
with the following key strategic comments.  It is also recommended that 
delegated powers are provided to enable further comments to be made as 
required on emerging ‘issues and options’ for the Winchester Local Plan.

Strategic Context

5. The NPPF explains that Local Plans should as a minimum meet the 
objectively assessed needs for housing and other development, as well as any 
needs that cannot be met in neighbouring areas, consistent with the principles 
of sustainable development.  

24



6. PUSH is currently scoping the work required to inform a Statement of 
Common Ground, and each council is considering its role in that process.  In 
any case, all councils, including Winchester City Council, will need to consider 
how they can help to meet unmet needs.  The Eastleigh Local Plan review 
(2016 – 2036) is at an advanced stage and plans positively to meet its own 
needs and some of the unmet needs in the wider area.  It is recommended 
that Eastleigh Borough Council supports the commencement of a Winchester 
Local Plan review, and requests that this positively considers how it can help 
to meet unmet needs in the wider area.

North of Bishopstoke Link Road / Strategic Growth Option North of 
Bishopstoke and Fair Oak

7. The submission Eastleigh Borough Local Plan (2016 – 2036) plans positively 
for its own and wider needs by allocating a ‘Strategic Growth Option’ to the 
north of Bishopstoke and Fair Oak.  This is a mixed use new community which 
will include at least 5,300 dwellings, employment and community facilities.  It 
will include a new link road to connect to the M3 junction 12, and part of the 
link road runs through Winchester district.  

8. The route of the link road is defined by the North of Bishopstoke Bypass and 
Allbrook Hill Relief Road – Feasibility Options Report (February 2016, 
Hampshire County Council Engineering Consultancy).  This forms part of the 
submitted Eastleigh Local Plan’s evidence base (SGO008).  The Transport 
Assessment for Eastleigh’s submitted plan demonstrates that the link road will 
enable the major new development needed to provide homes and jobs for the 
area to be delivered whilst minimising additional traffic delays.  It enables the 
major development to be delivered in Eastleigh whilst also achieving a slight 
overall reduction in traffic delays at 2036 in the Colden Common / Owslebury / 
Otterbourne / Twyford area of Winchester.  

9. It is recommended that Eastleigh Borough Council requests that in order to be 
‘sound’, the emerging Winchester Local Plan and policies map includes a 
specific policy to guide proposals for the link road and to safeguard the route.  
This will facilitate major growth in Eastleigh (reducing development pressure 
on Winchester) whilst also minimising and in some cases actually reducing 
future traffic delays in Winchester’s communities. 

Botley by-pass

10. The Botley by-pass is a long standing proposed road scheme which crosses 
the Eastleigh and Winchester areas.  The by-pass will provide significant 
traffic relief to Botley village and will facilitate development proposed in the 
Eastleigh Local Plan review (2016 – 2036) and in the current adopted 
Winchester Local Plan (in connection with the Whiteley Way in Winchester).  
The Botley by-pass now has planning permission and is funded.  It is 
recommended that Eastleigh Borough Council requests that the route of the 
Botley by-pass continues to be safeguarded within the Winchester Local Plan 
and that Winchester City Council assists in the delivery of the road.

25



11. Eastleigh Borough Council will welcome an on-going dialogue on these and 
other ‘cross boundary’ matters as the Winchester Local Plan progresses.

Financial Implications

12. This report has no financial implications.

Risk Assessment

13. It is important that the Winchester Local Plan supports the delivery of the north 
of Bishopstoke Link Road.  Failure to do so may increase housing and traffic 
pressures in Eastleigh and Winchester districts.

Equality and Diversity Implications

14. This report makes recommendations regarding the content of the emerging 
Winchester Local Plan.  There are therefore no adverse effects on equality 
groups within Eastleigh Borough. 

Conclusion

15. This report sets out recommendations for the response Eastleigh Borough 
Council should make on Winchester’s emerging Local Plan, to ensure that it 
facilitates the delivery of homes and infrastructure to the mutual benefit of 
residents in both Councils.

GRAHAM TUCK
PLANNING POLICY – SENIOR SPECIALIST

Date: 4 April 2019
Contact Officer: Graham Tuck
Tel No: 02380 683842
e-mail: graham.tuck@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report.  This list does not include any published 
works or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

26



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL

Thursday, 14 March 2019

CABINET

Thursday, 4 April 2019

DRAFT CORPORATE ACTION PLAN 2019/2020

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager

Recommendation(s)

It is recommended that  Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel

(1) Comments on the attached draft Corporate Action Plan for 2019/20 at Appendix 1.

(2) Considers performance of this Plan during 2019/20.

It is recommended that Cabinet

(3) Approves the attached draft Corporate Action Plan for 2019/20 at Appendix 1.

(4) Adopts the actions into the respective individual Portfolio Plans for 2019/20.

(5) Prioritises delivery of the actions in this Plan during 2019/20.

Summary

The report sets out the principles and a draft version of the proposed Corporate Action 
Plan (CAP) setting out the main activities of the Council in 2019-20.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to all Corporate Plan objectives and proposes the adoption 
of a key document to help Councillors and staff prioritise activity and 
resources. Actions included in the CAP have been identified as key activities 
that will have impact and assist in meeting strategic objectives.  

27

Agenda Item 6



Eastleigh Borough Council

Introduction

2. The Council has adopted a new way of working which includes (from the 
Corporate Plan 2015-2025):

(a) Updating a vision and a plan for the future of our borough

(b) Ensuring our services are well planned and efficient

(c) Meeting the needs of our residents, businesses and other key 
stakeholders.

(d) Operating in a business-like, commercially focussed way

The current set of strategic documents (Corporate Plan, themed strategies, 
Portfolio Plans 18/19) do not set out specific measurable actions that the 
Council will take to achieve objectives.

Corporate Action Plan (CAP)

3. The Corporate Action Plan is a statement of intention to carry out actions 
against a set of priorities, for residents, Councillors, staff and stakeholders, to 
visibly and meaningfully demonstrate its commitment to meeting Corporate 
Plan objectives. The Community Investment Programme has been a 
longstanding way of planning capital schemes and can be read alongside this 
document.

4. The Corporate Action Plan:

(a) Provides a summary (in its introductory text) of the state of the 
borough, the Council’s past achievements and future challenges, to 
give context to the specific actions listed in the table of actions. 

(b) Details a clear set of actions (services, projects, partnerships) that are 
chosen to have impact on corporate objectives, for the year ahead. (In 
some cases actions will fall across more than one year.) 

(c) Lists actions by Portfolio and each Portfolio section then becomes the 
action plan part of the eight Portfolio Plans. Local Area actions are also 
included in this CAP as an important feature of the way the Council 
delivers benefits for residents; actions of corporate significance may 
appear as Local Area actions e.g. actions relating to Eastleigh Town 
Centre. 

(d) Lists actions that have been identified from discussions between: 
Strategic Planning Team, Lead Specialists, Portfolio holders, 
Programme managers, Finance.  

(e) Gives the primary focus for quarterly strategic reviews including 
Portfolio holders. Strengthens the Portfolio role and encourages 
Cabinet members to act as strategic champions. Encourages cross-
Cabinet debate on the overall suite of actions and distribution of 
resource across the Council.

28



Eastleigh Borough Council

(f) Provides a rationale and/or (KPI) measure so that the successful 
implementation (performance) of the action can be measured, by 
managers, Portfolio holders and Scrutiny members. Some actions do 
not lend themselves easily to quantifiable measurement.

(g) Helps provide staff with a greater sense of cohesion, perspective and 
direction for the future year. Enables the Council to reflect at the end of 
the year on performance and levels of achievement. Provides material 
for both internal and external communication and helps in the planning 
of communications.

(h) The CAP in future years would again emerge out of discussions 
between Members, Management Team, Strategy leads, Finance and 
senior officers, including  the use of business cases and accurate 
costing of actions. The agreed set of actions would inform the size and 
shape of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). Actions in the CAP 
would then form key lines in operational Business Plans.

(i) Enables equalities impacts to be better considered both as the CAP is 
being drafted and each action is implemented. Enables the Council to 
more visibly demonstrate its performance against equalities objectives. 

5. The attached draft at Appendix 1 shows the draft CAP. The use of a published 
programme of deliverables is commonplace across Local Authorities with 
styles, lengths and content varying.

6. In future years the CAP could be approved alongside the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) in the autumn, or alongside the budget in 
January/February.

Actions for 2019/20

7. The actions identified in the 19/20 Corporate Action Plan reflect a degree of 
continuity with the Council’s previous activity. This approach reflects the 
Council’s strategic need to consolidate following a period of significant internal 
change and restructuring.

8. The CAP does include a small number of new and relatively minor initiatives 
which are strategically aligned and extend the Council’s reach and fulfil the 
ambition to achieve Corporate Plan outcomes. 

9. As the Corporate Action Planning and Strategic Planning process become 
more routine in future years, the CAP may include more significant service 
development projects. This will be supported by the programme of internal 
capacity-building through the IT programme and the introduction of 
performance management systems and processes including individual 
performance.

Comments from Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel

10. On 14 March the Panel considered the draft CAP and made the following 
recommendations (with the response in square brackets) 

29



Eastleigh Borough Council

(a) Local Area Plans to be included in the CAP in their entirety; [Agreed - 
this has been done in the version attached]

(b) Portfolio Plans need to be more detailed and include SMART (Specific, 
Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, Timely) performance measures; 
[SMART measures can be introduced in working versions of the 
document and performance against the Plan that will be reported 
quarterly to the Panel and Cabinet.] and

(c) The Panel would like an action in the Environment Portfolio Plan that 
the Council lobbies Hampshire County Council about increasing the 
types of waste to be recycled. [This is part of our ongoing dialogue with 
HCC and others; the CAP does not cover every action that the Council 
undertakes.]

Financial Implications

11. None. The draft CAP for 2019/20 does not make spending commitments 
above budget levels agreed in the MTFP (October 2018).  In future the CAP 
will inform the size and shape of the MTFP.

Risk Assessment

12. The Council risks operating in a reactive way if it does not clearly prioritise 
and plan.  

13. All the actions in the CAP are subject to Risks Management policy and 
practice, via Business Plans and project management. 

Equality and Diversity Implications

14. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment is attached at Appendix 2. 

Conclusion

15. The Corporate Action Plan is proposed as a useful planning, resource 
allocation, communication and performance management tool that would 
benefit the Council and residents.

DICCON BRIGHT
STRATEGIC PLANNING MANAGER

Date: 1 March 2019
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright
Tel No: 023 8068 8436
e-mail: Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: Appendix 1- Draft Corporate Action Plan 2019/20

Appendix 2 – Equalities Impact Assessment

30



Eastleigh Borough Council

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Corporate Plan 2015-2025
Four themed strategies
Portfolio Plans 2018/19
Local Area Plans 2019/20

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Borough Council

Corporate Action Plan
2019/2020

DRAFT

GREENER 
BOROUGH

HOUSING

ECONOMY

HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING

33



2  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

The Council continues to deliver great 
services and projects for residents, 
despite challenging finances and constant 
change locally, regionally, nationally and 
internationally. In surveys 
and statistics in recent years, 
Eastleigh often performs better 
than expected for a borough 
of this size and with a mixed 
demographic that has more 
socioeconomic challenges than 
the average for the South East. 
While the retail sector across 

the country suffers significant threats from 
out-of-town and online shopping, Eastleigh 
town centre remains resilient, and continues to 
attract shoppers and visitors. Unemployment 

is low but there is a need for higher 
paid jobs and improved skills. 
The difference in life expectancy 
across the borough is decreasing, 
but there remains a need to 
tackle pockets of social isolation, 
deprivation and mental illness. 
Congestion and air quality issues 
persist. Levels of open space and 

Introduction

The Borough 
remains a 
leader in 
Hampshire 
for recycling

34



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  3

high quality biodiversity are good with new 
areas of open space being made accessible. 
The Borough remains a leader in Hampshire 
for recycling, but has not been enabled to 
make further progress. Challenges remain 
for our residents: the housing market is still 
unaffordable and insecure for many; rates of 
unhealthy weight and physical inactivity need 
further improvement and uncertainty around 
Brexit continues to affect many business 
sectors. 

The Council is more 
than ever focused on 
outcomes for residents, 
businesses and visitors 
to the Borough. To 
do this, and to meet 
significant funding 
pressures, we have 
embarked on the 
biggest structural and cultural change for over 
20 years: Future Eastleigh. We have reduced 
the staff headcount and restructured services 
to meet our customers’ needs, making us 
more efficient and ensuring our finances are 
secure. We have introduced new systems and 
processes but there is still much to do, which is 
why we are investing further in staff skills and 
in digital technology to create the culture of 
a truly modern Council. This will enable us to 
deliver ‘more with less’, and to engage more 
easily with our customers, listening to their 
views, delivering services to meet their needs 
and helping them to take action themselves 
to improve life for themselves and their 
neighbourhood. The Council is reaffirming 
its approach to localism; 2019/20 will see a 
range of local improvement projects delivered 
and Local Area Committees better able to 
scrutinise and support the quality of services in 
their areas.

This Council understands that results for 
residents and businesses often cannot be 
delivered by the Council alone. So we will 
continue to look outward to partners in our 
region and within the borough: Solent LEP 
(Local Enterprise Partnership) and our PUSH 
(Partnership for Urban South Hampshire) 
partners; other local authorities; central 
government and its departments; NHS 
organisations; the voluntary sector; and 

residents and businesses 
themselves.

In 2018 the Council 
finalised, consulted 
on and submitted 
its Local Plan. 2019 
will see the public 
examination of the Plan 
and the conclusion of 

The Council is more 
than ever focused on 
outcomes for residents, 
businesses and visitors 
to the Borough 

35



4  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

the independent inspector’s assessment of 
the Plan. This sets out a clear approach to 
deliver homes and more employment land 
while enhancing and creating communities, 
minimising increases in traffic, and protecting 
the most precious environments and assets 
of the Borough. Following the success of 
the Woodside Avenue development and 
the completion of 800 additional homes 
in 2018/19, the Council’s ambitions for 
improving the affordability and security of 
housing will continue with an increasing 
programme of housing delivery projects.

Despite pressures, the Council’s finances are 
fundamentally sound, due to our innovative 
and prudent approach to property investments 
over many years which gives the Council 
around £10m net income each year. The 
Council will continue with this approach, 
gradually increasing net income from this 
activity, to keep Council Tax low and to invest 
in front-line services and projects that we know 
benefit residents. The Council will develop 
its commercial approach further to increase 

income from some discretionary services so 
that our parks and theatres can continue to 
deliver health and wellbeing benefits to all 
our residents. The Council will also use its 
commercial skills and experience to select and 
deliver infrastructure and regenerative projects 
in our town centres and across the Borough; 
two new Cabinet portfolios have been created 
to lead and support this, working together with 
colleagues to ensure health, environmental 
and economic benefits are realised. 

The actions listed below demonstrate the 
Council’s continuing determination to deliver 
for residents and businesses of the Borough, 
to maintain the Borough’s significant role in 
the region and to help improve the quality of 
life for all, in line with the Council’s Corporate 

Despite pressures, the 
Council’s finances are 
fundamentally sound

36



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  5

Plan 2015-2025. The Council will continue to 
deliver key statutory and discretionary services 
for residents and businesses. The list below 
shows the projects, services and initiatives that 
Cabinet members and Local Area Committees 
will particularly champion during 2019/20 
and beyond; many deliver direct benefits, 

some also take a long term view – initiatives 
that give us evidence, insight, technology and 
skills to take the right actions for residents 
in the future. The Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan and Budget for 2019/20 
support all these actions. 

The ten highest priority actions for the Council in 2019/20 are:

• Oversee progress of the Local Plan 2016-
2036 (subject to Planning Inspectorate 
timescales)

• Support a traffic study on Bishopstoke 
Road leading to a scheme including 
improvements at the Chickenhall Lane 
junction

• Review of the Council’s waste policy 
and introduce further measures to help 
residents recycle more

• Boost affordable housing provision in the 
Borough through an affordable homes 
programme and review of Council land 
and assets

• Complete a Borough wide Air Quality 
Strategy and Action Plan

• Implement a range of campaigns to 
encourage more physical activity and 
fitness, tackling unhealthy weights and on 
social inclusion

• Identify ways in which we can help 
residents in areas of relative deprivation 
access all of the services and support that 
is on offer

• Carry out Masterplanning for sustainable 
new communities including the west of 
Horton Heath development

• Complete construction of hi-spec office 
accommodation at Eastleigh’s gateway  
site (former magistrates court and civic 
offices site)

• Deliver a business advice service to  
meet the needs of SMEs (small and 
medium-sized enterprises) including 
Wessex House residents

37



6  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

Actions

Environment: To develop green infrastructure, minimise waste and 
create an excellent environment for all we will:

Action Measure Milestones

Review of the Council’s waste policy 
and introduce further measures to 
help residents recycle more

Increased percentage 
of waste recycled in 
Eastleigh Borough

Updated waste policy 
signed off by June 
2019

Implement delivery of electronic 
or paper welcome packs for new 
households

Percentage and 
number of new 
households who 
receive welcome pack

Designed by end 
February, full 
implementation by 
September 2019

Implement a marketing campaign to 
relaunch the food waste service  

Increased tonnage of 
food waste collected 
per household

Launch of campaign in 
Summer 2019 

Carry out the Biodiversity Action Plan 
annual assessment

Completed assessment By end March 2019

Review progress on zero carbon 
targets and create a plan on 
renewable energy

Completed review and 
plan

2019/20

Environment Portfolio Holder

Councillor Rupert Kyrle

38



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  7

Transport: To tackle congestion and associated pollution we will:

Action Measure Milestones

Support a traffic study on Bishopstoke 
Road leading to a scheme including 
improvements at the Chickenhall 
Lane junction

Completed study 
and scheme 
implementation. 
Improved traffic flow

Commence  2019/20 
(subject to HCC)

Range of actions to promote 
sustainable travel e.g. through new 
developments

Usage of sustainable 
travel

Annual improvements

Optimise the routes and operations of 
the Council’s waste fleet 

Route restructuring 
completed. Decreased 
fuel consumption by 
fleet

Optimisation 
completed by July 
2019 

Support the Botley bypass 
infrastructure project

Progress against 
Hampshire County 
Council’s delivery plan 
for Botley bypass

Bypass infrastructure 
construction expected 
to commence summer 
2019

Complete a Borough wide Air Quality 
Strategy and Action Plan

Completed air quality 
modeling consultation  
and document

Consultation – 
Autumn 2019, 
report completed – 
December 2020

Complete a Cycling and Walking 
Strategy

Report Completed By Autumn 2019 

Transport Portfolio Holder

Councillor David Airey

39



8  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

Health: To enable healthier lifestyles and wellbeing we will:

Action Measure Milestones

Implement priority actions of the three 
Eastleigh Health and Wellbeing Board 
(EH&WB) sub groups

KPIs from the action 
plans

EH&WB Strategy to 
be implemented by 
March 2019. 

Implement a range of campaigns to 
encourage more physical activity and 
fitness, tackling unhealthy weights and 
on social inclusion

Engagement in the 
campaigns. Improved 
health outcome 
measures 

Through 2019/20

Implement a wellness café pilot 
project in Hedge End (with Hedge 
End Town Council)

Number of visitors and 
sessions delivered.  

Opening of café May 
2019

Deliver SportWorks and Healthworks 
programmes of physical activity and 
wellbeing projects

Number of 
attendances/visits for 
all sport. Number of 
sessions delivered.  

Programme delivered 
throughout 2019/20

Manage and support key leisure 
facilities to improve mental and 
physical wellbeing  

Attendances/
participation at leisure 
centres, parks and 
theatres

Throughout 2019/20

Health Portfolio Holder

Councillor Tonia Craig

40



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  9

Social Policy: To tackle deprivation we will: 

Action Measure Milestones

Set up a network of key partners 
to help tackle health inequality/
deprivation, for example food bank, 
DWP, CitA, community groups, Fledge 
etc

Breadth and quality of 
the partnership

September 2019

Implement a new housing and 
homelessness strategy

 Strategy produced July 2019

Develop a volunteer strategy for 
Council staff to support community 
programmes

Number of Council 
staff volunteering 

December 2019

Identify ways in which we can 
help residents in areas of relative 
deprivation access all of the services 
and support that is on offer 

A developed plan of 
actions

October 2019

Explore ways of supporting former 
and current Armed Forces personnel 
and families

A developed plan of 
actions

October 2019

Develop and promote a holistic 
offer for the Passport to Leisure card, 
involving new providers

Number of new 
members registered 
with a Passport to 
Leisure card

June 2019

Social Policy Portfolio Holder

Councillor Tina Campbell

41



10  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

Housing delivery: To increase provision and a more diverse mix of 
housing we will: 

Action Measure Milestones

Raise the Council’s profile as a 
leading authority in housing delivery 
and property investment. Submit 
funding bids for external support  

Feedback from other 
Councils and sector 
representatives.   Bids 
submitted

Throughout 2019-20 

Oversee progress of the Local Plan 
2016-2036  (subject to Planning 
Inspectorate timescales)

Successful completion 
of the Plan’s 
Examination in Public 

Adoption of the Plan 
during 2019/20.  

Carry out Masterplanning for 
sustainable new communities 
including the west of Horton Heath 
(WOHH) development 

Monthly meetings of 
Project Board and 
progress updates   

WOHH 
masterplanning 
completed and early 
implementation during 
2019/20

Take a leading role in project 
planning and delivery of a new 
community north of Bishopstoke and 
Fair Oak

Community 
engagement

Early in 2019/20

Housing & Development:  
Planning & Property 

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Keith House

42



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  11

Action Measure Milestones

Boost affordable housing provision in 
the Borough through an affordable 
homes programme and review of 
Council land and assets

Expenditure of New 
Homes Bonus on 
additional affordable 
housing

Programme of 
affordable housing 
from 2019/20 to 
2021/22

Support affordable routes to home 
ownership through rolling out the 
‘Eastleigh route to home ownership’ 
offer

Policy agreed, 
adopted and 
implemented

Adoption by April 
2019

Commission study of older people’s 
accommodation needs

Completed study 2019/20

Improve the range of services 
available to applicants of 
householder planning applications 

New services 2019/20

Build new homes and 
accommodation for One Community 
and Age Concern on site at Romsey 
Road

49 flats for sale, 
charities rehomed

Start Spring 2019, 
completion 2022

Secure consents for new homes on 3 
town centre sites:  Hanns Way, 91B 
The Crescent, Nightingale Avenue 

Consents achieved June 2019 

Take possession of completed units 
at Stoneham, ongoing construction 
including local centre

Units handed over 
(total 147 units)

2019/20

Support construction of 200  
(including 70 affordable) new homes 
at Bursledon and start on Windhover 
Meadows country park

Scheme milestones 
including handing 
over of 47 units 
to Aspect Building 
Communities Limited

2019/20 (expected 
completion of scheme 
20/21)

Start construction on site at  
Pembers Hill

245 units Completion est 
2023/24

43



12  |  Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT

Regeneration: To support the environment, health and wellbeing, 
housing delivery and the economy through regeneration we will:

Action Measure Milestones

Complete construction of hi-spec 
office accommodation at Eastleigh’s 
gateway site (former magistrates court 
and civic offices site)

Completion By end of 2019/20

Consolidate Phase 1 improvements at 
Itchen Valley Country Park and finalise 
long term plan

Increased visitor 
numbers

2019/20

Regeneration (North) 
Portfolio Holder

Regeneration (South) 
Portfolio Holder

Councillor Paul Bicknell

Councillor Ian Corben

44



Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020  DRAFT  |  13

Economy: To improve skills and employment, infrastructure and to 
reinvigorate town and local centres we will:

Action Measure Milestones

Install Geo-sense footfall analytics 
to Eastleigh Town Centre (with the 
Eastleigh Business Improvement 
District (BID) and Local Area 
Committee)

Installation and use. 
Monitoring feedback 
reports from the BID

By March 2020

Deliver the EU funded Pontoon 
project to promote women currently 
outside the workforce with digital 
skills

50 women in the 
beneficiary cohort 
supported into 
employment

By March 2020

Work with Wessex House to increase 
occupancy, support residents and 
deliver a move on strategy for 
residents (Wessex House2)

Occupancy levels. 
Move on levels

December 2019

Deliver the ‘Primary Engineer’ 
programme in primary schools to 
promote STEM (Science, technology, 
engineering and mathematics) skills

Number of schools 
enrolled and 
participating in the 
programme 

September 2019

Deliver a Business advice service to 
meet the needs of SMEs (including 
Wessex House residents)

Programme started 
and SMEs accessing 
the service

September 2019

Deliver a business engagement 
conference focusing on the ‘Made in 
Eastleigh’ brand providing a showcase 
for local business excellence and a 
forum for our bespoke business groups 

Conference held and 
well attended. Made 
in Eastleigh stands. 
Bespoke business 
group involvement

October 2019

Promote the new Hampshire 
Community Bank as a lending option 
for growing Borough businesses

Loans issued to 
Eastleigh businesses

September 2019

Economy Portfolio Holder

Councillor Derek Pretty

45



Cllr Paul Bicknell - Local Area Chair

paul.bicknell@eastleigh.gov.uk

Eastleigh (ELAC)

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the
Local Area Manager

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

▶ Decide local priorities

▶ Manage local budgets

▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and traffic management

▶ Work with the local community

▶ Champion the local area

▶ Decide planning applications

▶ Act as a link between the Council and local
people

▶ Support local Councillors

▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects

▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money

▶ Identify local needs and priorities

▶ Work closely with Parish Councils, schools
and community groups

▶ Major planning applications –
maximise community benefits
from current sites at North
Stoneham Park (including new
affordable housing, school,
nursery, community building,
shops, parks, play areas and
public art) and Woodside
Avenue (including new park,
play area and public art)

▶ Deliver open space
improvements – at the
Campbell Road play area,
convert Market Street MUGA
into a community garden,
complete Grantham Green
scheme, commence the new
Pirelli Park project

▶ Refurbish the bus station toilets

▶ Enable the transfer of land
assets to Chandler’s Ford and
Hiltingbury and Allbrook and
North Boyatt Parish Councils

▶ Countryside sites - deliver
improvements at Lakeside
Country Park by improving the
park extension land, car parks
and signage

▶ Town Centre – deliver a
programme of events in
partnership with the Eastleigh
Business and Improvement
District

▶ Air Quality – develop a new Air
Quality Management Strategy

▶ Employment – open a job club
at the Cableworks Learning
Centre

Key Partnerships

▶ Allbrook Parish Council

▶ Chandler’s Ford and
Hiltingbury Parish Council

▶ Eastleigh Business and
Improvement District

▶ Health providers

▶ Local youth service providers

▶ Local community building
management boards

▶ Eastleigh schools and colleges

▶ Local residents associations

▶ Local housing associations

▶ Hampshire Cultural Trust

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Eastleigh

Guy Riddoch - Local Area Manager
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 023 8068 3369

Local Area Action Plan 
2019/20

Corporate Action Plan  2019/2020   DRAFT  |  13

 14

46



Cllr Louise Parker-Jones 
- Local Area Chair

louise.parker-jones@eastleigh.gov.uk

Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & 
Horton Heath (BIFOHH)

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

▶ Y Zone – Delivering youth
provision in 2019/20

▶ Pembers Hill – Maximise the
delivery of community benefits
and facilities in partnership with
the local parish council

▶ Strategic Growth Option
for BIFOHH – Members
will work tirelessly to protect
the environment, and ensure
any development has regard
to the views and well-being of
existing residents, communities,
wildlife and countryside –
whatever the outcome of the
planning inspector

▶ St Paul’s Church Community
extension – Provide community
space for the east side of the
Bishopstoke village

▶ Memorial Hall feasibility –
Undertake a detailed feasibility
with costed options to decide
the future of the Memorial Hall

▶ Public Art – Deliver relevant
public art projects that reflect
the history and essence of the
local villages

▶ Local Plan Team

▶ Direct Services

▶ Corporate Communications

▶ Locality Team (Local
Engagement Officers)

▶ Development Management

▶ Property Services

▶ Y Zone

Key Partnerships

▶ Bishopstoke Parish Council

▶ Fair Oak & Horton Heath
Parish Council

▶ BIFOHH Community Safety
Action Group

▶ Horton Heath Development
Forum

▶ Twynams

▶ Memorial Hall Committee

▶ Y Zone

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Eastleigh

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the
Local Area Manager

▶ Champion the local area

▶ Decide local priorities

▶ Manage local budgets

▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and traffic management

▶ Work with the local community

▶ Decide planning applications

▶ Support local Councillors

▶ Work closely with Parish Councils, schools
and community groups

▶ Identify local needs and priorities

▶ Act as a link between the Council and
local people

▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects

▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money

Andy Thompson - Local Area Manager
andrew.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk
023 8068 8357

Local Area Action Plan 
2019/20

 15

47



Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Manager 

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

▶ Decide local priorities

▶ Manage local budgets

▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and traffic management

▶ Work with the local community

▶ Champion the local area

▶ Decide planning applications

▶ Act as a link between the Council and
local people

▶ Support local Councillors

▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects

▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money

▶ Identify local needs and priorities

▶ Work closely with Parish Councils, schools
and community groups

▶ Hiltingbury Lakes regeneration
– feasibility study, work
programme and long-term
management plan.

▶ Ramalley Scout hut replacement

▶ Reprovision of the Arch youth
theatre building

▶ Comprehensive review of
cycleways and links between
them

▶ Country Parks and Land
Management – Hiltingbury
Lakes, Ramalley Copse,
Cuckoo Bushes, Hocombe
Mead,  Pine Cemetery

▶ Support Services –
Community Grants

▶ Y Zone youth work team

▶ Direct Services – additional leaf
clearance, hanging baskets
and plant towers, Ramalley
Cemetery

Min Partner - Local Area Manager
min.partner@eastleigh.gov.uk   023 8068 8357

Alan Broadhurst - Local Area Chair

alan.broadhurst@eastleigh.gov.uk

Chandler’s Ford  
& Hiltingbury (CFH)

Key Partnerships

▶ Chandler’s Ford Parish Council

▶ Hiltingbury Community
Association

▶ Fryern Community Association

▶ Eastleigh Borough Council/Test
Valley Borough Council Liaison
Group

▶ Conservation volunteers and
Friends of Hocombe Mead

▶ Community groups and
organisations (according to
issue)

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Eastleigh

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Local Area Action Plan 
2019/20

Appendix 1

16

48



Cllr Cynthia Garton - Local Area Chair

cynthia.garton@eastleigh.gov.uk

Hedge End,  
West End & Botley (HEWEB)

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Manager 

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

▶ Decide local priorities

▶ Manage local budgets

▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and traffic management

▶ Work with the local community

▶ Champion the local area

▶ Decide planning applications

▶

▶ Act as a link between the Council and
local people

▶ Support local Councillors

▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects

▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money

▶ Identify local needs and priorities

▶ Work closely with Town and Parish Councils,
schools and community groups

▶ Major planning applications
- maximise community benefit
from current sites at Boorley
Park, Boorley Gardens,
Woodhouse Lane, Winchester
Street, St. John’s Phase 1 and
2, Hedge End and Hatch Farm

▶ Itchen Valley Country Park -
produce master plan for Phase
2 onwards

▶ Wildern swimming pool roof/
spectator seating - feasibility
study

▶ Public art at the Berry Theatre
entrance; Moorgreen hospital
site; Welcome to West End
signage and green routes in
Hedge End

▶ Former Budgens’ site,
Hedge End

▶ Country Parks, Land
Management and Corporate
Communications – Itchen
Valley Country Park

▶ Direct Services and Corporate
Communications - sponsored
roundabouts Direct Services

and Locality Team – car parks 
at Itchen Valley Country Park 
and Hedge End Train Station

▶ Support Services - Community
and Youth Grants

Key Partnerships

▶ Hedge End Town Council

▶ West End Parish Council

▶ Botley Parish Council

▶ Hampshire County Council

▶ Boorley Green Working
Group including Community
Development Officer

▶ Wildern Academy Trust

▶ HEWEB Community Schools
Network

▶ Hampshire Cricket in the
Community

▶ HEWEB Youth Partnership

▶ HEWEB Business Group

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Eastleigh

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Julia Birt - Local Area Manager
julia.birt@eastleigh.gov.uk   023 8068 8437

Local Area Action Plan 
2019/20

17

49



Cllr Tonia Craig - Local Area Chair

tonia.craig@eastleigh.gov.uk

Bursledon, Hamble-le-Rice 
& Hound (BHH)

Responsibilities of the 
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the
Local Area Manager

Key Projects & Priorities

Key Services (Internal)

▶ Decide planning applications

▶ Champion the local area

▶ Manage local budgets

▶ Decide local priorities

▶ Work with the local community

▶ Determine local levels of council services such
as Streetscene and Traffic Management

▶ Act as a link between the Council and local
people

▶ Support local Councillors

▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the
capital programme/major projects

▶ Work with the Council to improve local
services and to ensure value for money

▶ Identify local needs and priorities

▶ Work closely with Town and Parish Councils,
schools and community groups

▶ Major planning applications
- Maximise community benefit
from current sites at Bursledon
Car-Boot site, Kingfisher
Grange, Monarchs Keep.

▶ Mercury Hub – ensure the
Service Level Agreement with
Hamble Parish is effective.

▶ Bursledon Station car-park
improvements – feasibility study

▶ Public Art plan for the peninsula

▶ Air quality review and Travel
Plan for the Peninsula

▶ Investigate the introduction of a
youth partnership

▶ Country Parks and Land
Management – Hamble
Common

▶ Corporate Communications

▶ Direct Services – leaf clearance,
benches, bins, fencing.

▶ Locality Area Services – car
parks at Hamble Square, Netley
and the Lowford Centre

▶ Support Services – Community
Grants/Finance

▶ Specialist services – traffic
regulation orders and traffic
studies

Key Partnerships

▶ Bursledon Parish Council

▶ Hamble Parish Council

▶ Hound Parish Council

▶ Bursledon District Community
Association

▶ Pilands Wood Community
Association

▶ Hamble School and Sports
Complex

▶ Primary schools

▶ Health centres

▶ Youth Options

▶ Hampshire County Council/
Hamble River Authority

▶ Hampshire Police

▶ Local Businesses including GE
Aviation, BP and Coopervision

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Eastleigh

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Matt Blythe - Local Area Manager
matthew.blythe@eastleigh.gov.uk   023 8068 8311

Local Area Action Plan

18

50



Equality Impact Assessment

This template is to help you to write your EIA.

Title of EIA: Corporate Action Plan 2019/2020

Brief description of  the Proposal: A suite of priority actions to be delivered in 2019/20 

Assessment:

Statutory Considerations
Please highlight what adverse impact could there be on the nine protected characters 
groups below, for the proposal?

Gender:  Standard physical activity programs tend to have the effect of 
excluding women

Age:  A wellness café may be perceived as being just for older or 
disabled people.

 Measures to raise awareness of social isolation may not 
address how this affects people at all lifestages

Disability:  Recycling promotion could exclude people with disabilities.
 The Cycling and Walking strategy needs to encourage active 

travel by people who are frail or disabled. 
 Standard physical activity programs tended to have the effect 

of excluding women
 Improvements at Itchen Valley Country Park, Hiltingbury 

Lakes and open spaces may exclude people with disabilities

Pregnancy and 
Maternity:

 Measures to raise awareness of social isolation may not 
address how this affects people at all lifestages

 Improvements to public facilities might not cater for pregnant 
women or families with very small children including breast- or 
bottle-feeding 

51



Race  Previous physical activity programs tended to have the effect 
of excluding BME groups

Religion or belief  None identified

Marriage and civil 
partnership

 None identified

Gender reassignment:  None identified

Non statutory considerations 

Social deprivation  Any projects or services that include charges may 
disadvantage people on low incomes

What could reduce any 
adverse impact on 
these groups?

 Discounts for fees will reduce adverse impact on people on 
low incomes

 Targeting of physical activity programmes to identified 
audiences

 Consideration of the abilities and access needs of people with 
impairments

What engagement or 
consultation has been 
carried out?

 None specifically for the Corporate Action Plan itself. The 
current (Feb/Mar 2019) resident consultation will allow us to 
detect perceived inequalities in residents’ experience of 
Council services. Each action may include its own 
consultation.

How is this proposal 
likely to eliminate 
unlawful 
discrimination 
harassment and 
victimisation?

 The range of actions does not directly achieve this. However 
by meeting other equality duties, the actions will reduce the 
risk of discrimination, harassment and victimisation.

How is the policy likely  Welcome packs will be inclusive of all new residents

52



to advance equality of 
opportunity?

 A network of agencies such as CAB, Food bank, DWP etc will 
support residents experiencing social disadvantage 

 An improved ‘Passport to Leisure’ card will help a wider range 
of disadvantaged groups access leisure services

 Increasing the supply of housing will improve affordability
 A study for older people’s accommodation needs will ensure 

adequate provision and access to accommodation
 The PonTOON project promotes employment prospects in 

digital sector for women 
 The ‘Primary Engineer’ programme promotes STEM skills and 

engineering careers to both girls and boys 
 Many Local Area actions promote equality of opportunity for 

young people

How does the proposal 
foster good relations 
between people who 
share a characteristic 
and those who don't?

 Welcome packs will be inclusive of all new residents.
 Council policy on new developments includes provision for 

mixed as opposed to exclusive or single use development. 
Affordable housing is usually located within a mixed 
development

Action Plan 

Activity Outcome Timeframe Person 
responsible

Include measures for people 
with disabilities in waste policies 
and measures to improve 
recycling

People with 
disabilities as 
satisfied, and 
recycling as much 
as people without 
disabilities

June 2019 Jason Light

The wellness café is designed 
to be inclusive of all ages, 
genders, abilities and other 
characteristics

Diverse attendance May 2020 Ross McClean

Ensure improvements at IVCP, 
Hiltingbury Lakes and open 

Diverse visitors April 2021 Tracey Churcher

53



spaces are accessible for all

Lead Officer: Diccon Bright

Manager: Natalie Wigman

Date completed; 1/3/19

54



Document is Restricted

55

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

65

Agenda Item 8a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Waste Policy
	5 Emerging Winchester Local Plan
	6 Corporate Action Plan
	Item 6 Appendix 1
	Item 6 Appendix 2

	8 Property Transaction
	Item 8 Appendix A
	Item 8 Appendix B

	8a Property Transaction
	Item 8a Appendix A




